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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

Asat 31 December 2020

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the annual financial
statements that fairly presentthe state of the affairs of iMpumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited ("the
Company")atthe end ofthe financial year andthe financial performance and cash flows for thereporting
period, andotherinformationcontainedin this report.

To enable the directors to meetthese responsibilities:

o All directorswill endeavourto maintainthe highest ethical standards in ensuringthe Company's
business is conducted in a manner thatin all reasonable circumstances is above reproach;

e Theboardsets standards and management implements systems of internal controland accountingand
information systems aimed at providing reasonable assurance that both on and off statement of
financial positionassets are safeguarded and the risk of error, fraud orloss is reduced in a cost-
effective manner. These controls, contained in established policies and procedures, includethe proper
delegationof responsibilities and authorities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties;

e Theboardand managementidentifyallkey areas of risk across the Company and endeavour to
mitigate or minimise these risks by ensuring thatappropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
discipline are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints;

e Theinternalaudit function outsourced from Absa Group Limited Internal Audit, which operates
unimpeded and independently from operational management, appraises, evaluates and, when
necessary, recommends improvements to the systems of internal controland accounting practices,
based onaudit plans that take cognisance of therelative degrees of risk of each functionoraspect of
the business;and

e Theinternalauditorsplayan integralrole in matters relating to financialand internal control,
accounting policies, reportinganddisclosure.

To the best of their knowledge and belief, based onthe above, thedirectors aresatisfied that no material
breakdown in the operation of the systems of internal controland procedures has occurred during the year under
review.

The Company consistently adopts appropriate and recognised accounting policies and theseare supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates ona consistent basis. The financial statements ofthe
Company havebeen prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act of South Africa and
comply in all material respects with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) andallapplicable
legislation.

The directors have no reason tobelieve thatthe Company willnot be a goingconcernin the reporting period
ahead, based on forecasts and available cashresources. Thesefinancial statements have accordingly been
prepared onthis basis.

Itis the responsibility of the independent auditor to reporton theannual financial statements. Their report to the
shareholders of the Company is set out on pages 12to 14 of thisreport.

Thedirectors'report onpages 15to 16 and financial statements of the Company whichappears on pages 17to
57 were approved bythe board of directors on29 March 2021 andaresigned on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:

M L De Nys\gcr.P@W738ACFCC441...

Sandton
DocuSigned by:
@omﬂm Bunadt
83N1ND7EEIAAEAEA
JR Burnett
Sandton



IMPUMELELO CP NOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

COMPANY SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

Asat31 December 2020

To the shareholders ofiMpumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited,

In accordance with the provisions of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act of South Africa, I, in my capacity as
a duly authorised representative of the Company Secretary hereby certify that, in respect of the yearended

31 December 2020, the Company has fﬂed with the Commissioner of the Companies and Intellectual Property
Commission (CIPC) all returns and notje€s prescribed by the Act and thatall such returns and notices are, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, trug gctandup to date.

V

JLUN o

Absa Secretyy ides Proprictaty/LinTited
(Represetiteéd by : Gerrie van Rooyen)
29 Mairch2021



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Asat 31 December 2020

The Company’s corporate governance practices are guided by the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008 (as amended),
the Companies Memorandum of incorporation (Mol) and the recommendations of the King Code onCorporate
Governance for South Africa, 2016 (King 1 V).

The Board of Absa Group Limited (Group Board) sets the overarching governance principles tobe upheld and
practicedby allentities (related or inter-related) to assist in embedding good governance practices in the Group.
The Absa Group’s governance standards, described in the Group Governance Framework, were adopted by the
Board during2019.

King IVis the maingovernance code for South African companies. The Company has adopted the application
ofthe Codeon a proportional basis (to the extent beneficial to the entity’s governance). The Company’s
application ofKing 1V is set out in the King 'V application register, included on page 6 of these annual financial
statements. In addition to the Group’s requirements, the Company is also required to apply King [V by the JSE
Listings Requirements based onthe proportionality principle.

The Board of Directors (the Board) are of the opinionthatthe Company has applied the principlesand
recommendations of the Codein all material aspects fortheperiod under review.

The Board of Directorsare responsible for delivering sustainable value through oversight of the management of
the Company’s business; challenging and approving strategic plans proposed by management; and monitoring
implementation of the strategy and plans in the context of the approved risk a ppetite, the available opportunities
and the macro andregulatory environment.

Managementof the Company

The Boardisresponsible for delivering sustainable value to theshareholder. Inthis regard, the Board oversees
the managementof the Company’s business by challenging and approving the strategy and plans proposed by
management. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Company to C1B SPV Management
Team, whose performance the Board monitors through regular operationaland financial reporting.

Board Composition

The Board comprises four directors, one executive and three independent non-executive directors. The
independentnon-executive directors areoutsourced from TMF Corporate Services (Pty) Limited in termsofa
service levelagreementwith the iMpumelelo Owner Trust.

Professional Advice

The Boardand individual directors may procure independent professional adviceatthe expense of the Company
in the discharge of their responsibilities.

Company Secretarial and Governance support

The day-to-day company secretarialand corporate governance support duties are managed by a dedicated,
gualified and skilled Company Secretary who represents Absa Secretarial Services Proprietary Limited, the duly
appointed Company Secretary, with support from the Head of Secretarial Services for South Africaand a
statutory administration team within the Group Secretariat.

The Company Secretary also provides guidanceandadviceto the Boardasawhole, andto individual directors
on their duties and responsibilities as directors, which should be discharged in the best interest of the Company.

Audit Committee



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

The Boardrelies on the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) for input onthe audit and compliance functions from
the submissions made by the Group Internal Audit, Group Risk and Compliance functions of Absa Bank.

Notwithstandingthe role of the ARC in relationto the audit function, the board remains atalltimes responsible
formonitoring the effectiveness of the Company ’s control environment, thereview and approval of theannual
financial statements, and engages with representatives of the internal and external audit for assurance of the
integrity of the financialandrelated information.

All auditissues raised duringtheaudit for the financial year-ended 31 December 2019 were submittedto,
consideredandresolved by the Board.

Internal Audit
The internalaudit function is conducted by the Absa Group Limited internal audit.
Remuneration policy

The Companyis a ring-fenced special purpose vehicle and all services are outsourced to external service
providersand assuchhas noemployees andthus does nothave a remuneration committee.

Director remuneration:

The independent non-executive directors are not employees of the Company and receive fees for their services
asdirectors. Thesedirectors’ fees were paid to TMF Corporate Services (South Africa) Proprietary Limited in
termsof a service level agreement. The independentnon-executive directors are employed and remunerated by
TMF Corporate Services (South Africa) Proprietary Limited on a separate basis.

The executive director of the Companywho isan employee of the Absa Group does not receive any fees for
theirservicesasa director of the Company.

Risk Management

The Company’srisk is governed and managed in terms of the Group Enterprise Risk Management Framework
and related policies. The Board and executive management are responsible for the Company’s risk governance
and managementwithin the overall contextof the Group’s risk appetite and principal risks. The Company’s
Audit and Risk Committee in conjunction with Absa Corporate and Investment Banking (C1B), a division of
Absa Bank Limited, develop appropriate risk processes for managing risks.

The Boardbelieves thatrisk of the Company is adequately managed.

Compliance

The Company relies on the compliance function of Absa Bank Limited.

The board, being ultimately responsible for compliance of the Company, engages with management regularly to
discussanddevelop compliance processes forthe Company.

Sustainability reportinganddisclosure

The Companyisa ring-fenced special purpose vehicle whose sustainability is determined by the length oftime
of the transactionfor which the Company has beenincorporated. The Company is consolidated into the
financial results of Absa Group Limited. The Boardis however responsible in ensuringtheaccuracy ofthe
financial informationwhich is reportedto all the relevantstakeholders.

Managing Stakeholder relationships



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

The Absa Grouphas in place a Stakeholder Management Policy, which isapplicable to iMpumelelo CP Note
Programme1 (RF) Ltd. The Boardand the Manager are responsible for proactively engaging with material
stakeholders in an inclusive manner thatbalances their needs, interests and expectations, and to address their
concernsin the best way possible.

IT Governance

The Company’s Information Technology is governedin terms ofthe Absa Group I T governance policy and is
reliant on systems and information technology infrastructure housed within the Absa Group. The Group
Information Technology Committeeassists the Group Board with effective oversightof informationand
technology governanceforthe Group.

Conflicts of interest

The boardreviews the declarations of other financial interestand other directorships onanongoing basis at
board meetings and have considered thedeclarations during the period under review.

Fundamental and affected transactions

There were no fundamental transactions for the period under review.



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

King Reporton Corporate Governance

The King Report onCorporate Governance for South Africa 2016 (“King IV’ orthe “Code”)is the main
governance codeapplicable to companies in South Africa. The principlesand practices of the Code are to be
applied to the extent required and beneficial to a company (the proportionality principle), taking into
considerationa number of factors suchas the size of turnover, resources, complexity and nature of business.

The Board has satisfied itself that for the year under review the Company has applied the principles of King IV
to the extent deemed necessary or has put alternative measures in place. Furtherinformation on the Company’s
corporate governance is disclosed under “Corporate Governance Statement” ofthe Annual Financial Statements
(‘GAFS”).

Applicationof each principle of King IV is expectedto result in certain governance outcomes categorised as
“primary” or “secondary” depending on the degree of impact on governance ofapplying the practices underthe
principle.

Leadership and Organisational Ethics

Expected Outcomes - (i) Ethical Culture (primary), (ii) Legitimacy (primary), (iii) Effective Control
(secondary), (iv) Good Performance (secondary)

Principle 1 - The governingbody should lead ethically and effectively.

Principle 2 - The governingbody should govern the ethics of theorganisationin a way that supports the
establishment ofanethical culture.

The Boardis committed to the highest standards of corporate governance and in this regard thedirectors
collectively and individually executetheir duties and responsibilities in accordance with standards of behaviour
required by relevant regulation and legislation, the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation (Mol ) and the
Board Charter. The directors are alsocommitted to and adhere to ethical standards of behaviour.

The Board, in conjunction with the Company’s Social and Ethics Committee, is responsible for overseeing
ethicsandethical conduct in the Company.

Responsible Corporate Citizenshipand Regulatory Compliance

Expected Outcomes - (i) Ethical culture (primary), (ii) Legitimacy (primary), (iii) Good performance
(secondary)

Principle 3 - The governingbody should ensure thatthe organisation isand is seen to be a responsible corporate
citizen.

Principle 13 - The governingbody should govern compliance with laws and adopted non-binding rules, codes
and standards in a way that supports the organisation being ethicalanda good corporatecitizen.

The Company’s corporate citizenship and regulatory complianceare governed in accordance with its legislative
responsibilities as set outby the JSE Listings Requirements (if applicable); and the framework set by the Board
of Absa Group Limited (Group Board) (if applicable). The Board in conjunctionwith the Socialand Ethics
Committee are responsible to review, developandalign policies to enhance and ensure the company remains a
good corporatecitizen.

The Board complies with regulation relevant to its oversightresponsibilities and ensures that management also
complies with laws applicable to the Company. In formulating the Company’s strategy, the Board has regard to
matters relevantto its corporate citizenship status (including the impactof the Company’s operations on the
socialandeconomic environments).



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

King Reporton Corporate Governance (continued)
Strategy and Performance
Expected Outcomes - (i) Good performance (primary), (ii) Effective Control (secondary)

Principle 4 - The governingbody should appreciate thatthe organisation's core purpose, its risksand
opportunities, strategy, business model, performanceand sustainable development are allinseparable elements
of the value creation process.

The Boardisresponsible for creatinganddelivering sustainable value for the shareholder and benefits to the
company’s stakeholders by overseeing the management ofthe business. The Board (i) approves the company’s
strategic objectives, business plans and annual budgets, (ii) and monitors management’s implementation ofthe
strategy and plans according to the approved risk appetite, the available opportunities, andthe macroand
regulatory environment.

Reportingand Assurance

Expected Outcomes - (i) Effective control (primary), (ii) Good performance (primary), iii) Ethical culture
(secondary), (iv) Legitimacy (secondary)

Principle 5 - The governingbody should ensure thatreports issued by the organisation enable stakeholders to
makeinformed assessments of the organisation's performance and its short, medium and long-term prospects.

Principle 15 - The governing body should ensure that assurance services and functions enable an effective
controlenvironment, and that these supportthe integrity of information for internal decision-makingand ofthe
organisation's external reports.

The company’s primary report is the annual financial statements in which the company’s business activities and
financial performance are reported.

The Board oversees preparation of theannual financial statements and ensures thatthe state of affairs of the
Company andits financial wellbeing are fairly presented through application of appropriate assurance processes
supported by aneffective control environment. The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) assists theboard in
overseeingassurance services and the effectiveness of the control environment in order to ensure the objectivity
and integrity of the financial statements. The Board is ultimately responsible for the integrity of the reportand
approves the financial statements.

Board’s Primary Role and Responsibility
Expected Outcomes - (i) Effective control (primary), (ii) Good performance (primary)

Principle 6 - The governingbody should serveasthefocal pointand custodian of corporate governance in the
organisation.

The Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”)is the focal pointof the Company’s corporate governance.
The Company’s customized Memorandum of Incorporation (Mol), King IV, the Companies Act No. 71 of 2008
(asamended) (“the Companies Act”) determine the governance of the Company. The Board is the focal point
and custodian of the Company’s corporate governance and its role, responsibilities and procedural conduct are
documented the Company’s Mol, the Companies Act.

The Boardisthe focal point and custodian of the Company’s corporate governance and its role, responsibilities
and procedural conductare documented the Company’s Mol, the Companies Act.



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

King Reporton Corporate Governance (continued)
Board Composition
Expected Outcomes - Good performance (primary)

Principle 7 - The governing body should comprise theappropriate balance of knowledge, skills, experience,
diversity andindependence for it to discharge its governancerole and responsibilities objectively and
effectively.

Directors are appointed with due regard to relevant legislation, the constitution of the company andthe skills
and expertise, industry knowledge, gender andrace diversity required toenable the boardto function
effectively.

Newly appointed directors only serve until the first Annual General Meeting after theirappointmentunless they
are elected by the shareholder. Each director serves a maximum ofthreeterms of three years’ each, and will
only continue beyond 9 years on approval of the Shareholder, and subject to their performanceand behaviour
meetingthe Board’s standards.

The current membership of the Board is included in the directors' report.
Delegation to Managementand Committees
Expected Outcomes - (i) Effective control (primary), (ii) Good performance (primary)

Principle 8 - The governingbody should ensure thatits arrangements for delegation within its own structures
promote independent judgement, and assist with balance of power andthe effectivedischarge of its duties.

Principle 10 - The governing body should ensure that the appointment of, and delegation to, management
contribute to role clarity and the effective exercise of authority and responsibilities.

The Shareholder delegate authority to the Board through the Company’s Mol and shareholder resolutions passed
atthe shareholder’s meetings.

The Board determines the levels of authority of managementandthe ARC and the matters reserved forthe
Board’s ownauthority. The role and functions ofthe ARC is governed by terms of referenceapproved by and
regularly reviewed by the Board. The Board remains ultimately responsible for delegated responsibilities, and in
thisregard, the Boardreceivesregular reports onmaterial matters discussed and decisions taken at the ARC
meetings throughthe chairman. The Board remains ultimately responsibility forany delegated approvals made
by committees on its behalf.

Board and committee performance evaluations

Expected Outcomes - Good performance (primary)



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

King Reporton Corporate Governance (continued)

Principle 9 - The governingbody should ensure thatthe evaluation of its own performanceand that of its
committees, its chairandits individual members, support continued improvement in its performance and
effectiveness.

The effectiveness of the Board and performance of individual directors and the Chairmanare assessed
biennially (previously annually), againstset criteria. Matters arising, including areas requiring improvement,
and remedial plans are presented to the Board. Remediationis coordinated by the Company Secretary and
monitored by the Board until the nextevaluation.

The Chairmanengages with individual directors on the outcomes of the peer reviews to address the areas for
development orthose of concern. The Board effectiveness and performance evaluations will be conducted
during2021. The Audit Committee effectiveness and performance evaluation had been concluded during 2020.

Risk Governance
Expected Outcomes - (i) Effective control (primary), (ii) Good performance (primary)

Principle 11 - The governingbody should govern risk in a way thatsupports the organisationin settingand
achievingits strategic objectives.

The Board oversees the Company’s risk management within the framework ofthe Group’s enterprise risk
management framework (incorporating the principal and key risks). Risk levels appropriate forthe Company’s
business are determined by management and approved by the Board. The ARC assists the Boardin executing
its oversight role over risk management.

Executive management of the Company is responsible for embedding risk in the organisation and does this
through various programmes, including by ensuring that employees receivethe necessary trainingto be able to
identify, mitigate, manage and, when necessary, escalateactual or potential risks within theirwork environment.
Technology and information Governance

Expected Outcomes - (i) Effective control (primary)

Principle 12 - The governingbody should govern technology and informationin a way thatsupports the
organisationsettingand achieving its strategic objectives.

The Group Information Technology Committee of Absa Group Limited has overall oversight responsibility for
informationand technology governance in the Groupandthe systems employed by the Company.

The Boardacting through the Manager of the Company is responsible for the following oversight duties over
the managementof IT in general, including monitoring the following, as set out in the Group Governance
Framework:

* The resilience of the technology systems, infrastructure and applications in supporting customers and
employees.

* The robustness andresilience of processes to identify and exploit technology and information opportunities to
improve theentity’s performance and sustainability.



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Asat 31 December 2020

King Reporton Corporate Governance (continued)
* Planning, testingand user acceptance in relation to new systems and applications.

* The use of information (and data) to sustain and enhance theentity’s intellectual capital and strategic
advantage.

* The continual monitoring of security of information, including personal information of customers, employees
and other stakeholders.

Executive management is responsible for the day-to-day management of I T.
Remuneration Governance

Expected Outcomes - (i) Ethical culture (primary), (ii) Good performance (primary), (iii) Legitimacy (primary),
(iv) Effective control (secondary)

Principle 14 - The governingbody should ensure that the organisation remunerates fairly, responsibly and
transparently so asto promote theachievementof strategic objectives and positive outcomes in the short,
mediumand longterm.

The Company pays a corporateservice feeto TMF for the provision of non-executive directors. The
independentnon-executive directors of the Company are remunerated separately by TMF. The Absa appointed
directorwho isan employee of Absa Bank Limited is remunerated as an employee and not separately for his
role asa director of the Company.

Shareholder Relationships

Expected Outcomes - (i) Legitimacy (primary), (iv) Good performance (secondary)

Principle 16 - In the execution of its governance role and responsibilities, the governing body should adopta
stakeholder-inclusive approachthat balances the needs, interests and expectations of material stakeholders in the
best interests of the organisation over time.

The Company’s stakeholders are integral to the success of thebusiness. The Board proactively engages with
material stakeholders in aninclusive mannerthatbalances their needs, interests and expectations, and to address
theirconcernsin the best way possible.

Thisallows the Company to manage issues effectively and timeously and reduces the likelihood of reputational

risks. The Board understands that communication with stakeholders in respect of financialand non-financial
informationis vitalandopen interactionis actively pursued.

10
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Members of the Audit Committee and independent non-executive directors

R Thanthony 27 February 2015
ML De Nysschen 01 December2018
JN Wheeler 01 December2018

Meetings held by the Audit Committee

The audit committee performed the duties laid uponit by Section 94(7) of the Companies Act 71 0f2008as
amended by holding meetings with the key role players and by theunrestricted access granted to theexternal
auditors. The committee held ameetingon 26 March 2020, 27 October 2020and 17 March 2021 duringwhich
it fulfilled its responsibilities in terms the audit committee charter, in order to be able to recommend approval of
the Company’s financial statements to the Board.

Expertise and experience of finance function

Absa Secretarial Services Proprietary Limited, as Company Secretary provides ongoing Company Secretarial
administrationto iMpumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited (""the Issuer""). Absa Bank Limited, acting
through its Corporate and Investment Banking Division (“CIB”)is the administrator of the Issuer. The
committee satisfied itself that the composition, experienceand skills set of the finance function met the
Company’s requirements.

Independence of external auditors

The committee satisfied itself throughenquiry that the external auditors are independentas defined by the
Companies Act 71 of 2008 as amended and as per the standards stipulated by the auditing profession. Requisite
assurance was sought and provided in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 as amended that internal
governance processes within the firm supportand demonstrate theclaim to independence. The audit fee forthe
externalaudit has been considered and approved taking into considerationsuch factors as the timing of the
audit, the extentof thework required and thescope.

Discharge of responsibilities and Audited Annual Financial Statements

Following the review by the committee of the audited annual financial state ments of the Company for the year
ended 31 December2020andbased on the information provided to it, the committee considers that, in all
material respects, the Company complies with the provisions of the Companies Act No 71 of 2008, as amended,
International Financial Reporting Standards, and thatthe accounting policies applied are appropriate. Following
the review of the audited annual financial statements, the committee recommended the Company’s 2020 audited
annual financial statements forapproval to the Board on29 March 2021. The committee further concurred with
the Boardand managementthat theadoption of the going-concern status in preparation of the annual audited
finangialsigtaments is appropriate.

uﬁ&\

On beRFPETthE didit committee:
Rishendrie Thanthony
Chairperson: Audit Committee

29 March2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report To the Shareholders of Impumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF)
Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Impumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited (‘the
company’), set out on pages 17 to 57, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
company as at 31 December 2020, and it’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of
South Africa.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and
other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements of the company and
in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and
in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of the company and in South
Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 57 page document titled “Impumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited Annual Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020” which includes the Directors’ Report as required by the
Companies Act of South Africa as well as the Corporate Governance Report. The other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of
South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation

12
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of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company’s audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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EY

Building a better
working world

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we

report that Ernst & Young Inc. has been the auditor of Impumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited for
3 years.

Eaﬁlli’"e& ey L.

OF6CBAFD5AF24A1...

Ernst & Young Inc.

Director — Jan H Labuschagne
Registered Auditor

Chartered Accountant (SA)
30 March 2021
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED

(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
forthe yearended 31 December 2020

Company registration number

Country of incorporationand
domicile

Date of publication

Nature of businessand principal
activities

Directors

Registered office

Business address

Holding company

Ultimate holding company

Bankers

Auditors

Supervised by

Company secretary

Date of incorporation

2013/211998/06

South Africa

29 March2021

A special purpose company thatissues commercial paperto finance
the acquisition of assets. The ongoingaccounting, risk management
and administration are performed by Absa Bank Limited.

Name Appointmentdate
Independent non-executive directors

R Thanthony 27 February 2015
JN Wheeler 01 December2018
O Ferreira (Alternate) 31 January 2017
ML De Nysschen 01 December2018
Executive directors

JR Burnett 01 January 2017

7th Floor Absa Towers West
15 Troye Street
Johannesburg

Gauteng

2000

7th Floor Absa Towers West, 15 Troye Street
Johannesburg

2000

South Africa

iMpumelelo Owner Trust

iMpumelelo Owner Trust - Absa Bank Limited guarantees 100%of
the notes issued by iMpumelelo, and hence maintains control of the
Company in accordance with IFRS 10. The Company is consolidated
into Absa Bank Limited.

Absa Bank Limited

Ermst & Younglnc
102 Rivonia Road
Sandton

2196

These annual financial statements are prepared under thedirection
and supervision of the Head of Asset Classes Product Control,
Corporate and Investment Banking, Absa Bank Limited, Jan Luus,
CA(SA).

Absa Secretarial Services Proprietary Limited
(Represented by: Gerrie van Rooyen)

13 November 2013
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED

(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)
DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Review of operations

Review of financial results

Key performanceindicators

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a devastatingimpacton theglobal
economyand has resulted in significantchanges to government
actions, economic and marketdriversaswellas consumer behaviour.
Thisin turn hashada significant impacton the risks that the company
is exposed to. This high degree of uncertainty has forced the company
to reassess assumptions, and existing methods of estimationand
judgements, used in the preparation of these financial results. There
remains a risk that future performanceand actual results may differ
from the judgements and assumptions used.

The financial results of the Company are set outin the attached
financial statements. Theresultsdo not, in the opinion of the
directors, require further explanation.

2020 2019
R R

Profit forthe year
Totalcomprehensiveincome
Taxation

Dividends declaredand paid

Net assets
Net current liabilities

54793981 40173372
42685791 43982159
(20999005) (15932 745)
70000000 75000 000

26 446543 53760752
(5563161879) (7 773338995)

Authorised and issued share capital

Events after the reporting date

Going concern

Special resolution

Dividends paid

There were no changes to the authorised or issued share capital for
the yearunder review. The share capital is disclosed in note 15.

Events materialto theunderstanding of these annual financial
statements that occurred betweenthe financial yearendand the date
of thisreport havebeendisclosed in note 28.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of
accounting policies applicable to a goingconcern.

No specialresolutions were passed duringthe year.

A dividend of R70,000,000was paid to preferenceshareholders
duringthe year(2019: R75,000,000).
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes R R
Effective interest income 501465861 540945181
Otherinterestincome 74017233 43077328
Interestincome 4 575483094 584022509
Totalincome 575483094 584022509
Administration expenses 6 (352979) (457 409)
Otherexpenses 6 (6418399) (5119033)
Finance costs 5 (478669645) (521985015)
Fairvalue adjustments (13213 347) (976 444)
Expected credit loss 6 (1035738) 621509
Profit before tax 75792986 56106117
Taxation 7 (20999 005) (15932 745)
Profit forthe year 54793981 40173372
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profitor
loss:
Movementin Fair Value of Debt Instruments measured at
FVOCI
FairValue gainsarising during the reporting period (17199 659) 5773791
Deferred Tax 4708740 (1 481 455)
Expected credit loss 382729 (483549)
(12108190) 3808787
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net
of tax (12108190) 3808787
Total comprehensive income for the year, netof tax 42685791 43982159
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED

(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asat 31 December 2020
2020 2019

Notes R R
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments 9 891583453 2130985922
Loansand advances 10 4695702882 5697250069
Deferred tax assets 13 2322087 -
Totalnon-current assets 5589608422 7828235991
Current assets
Otherreceivables 11 796542 -
Investments 9 1010629191 -
Loansand advances 10 1849736790 358320160
Related party receivables 26 4497 218703
Other financial assets 22.1 - 4961981
Current tax assets 17 5158078 -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 38034672 68 840099
Totalcurrent assets 2904359770 432340943
Total assets 8493968192 8260576934
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Capital and reserves
Share capital 15 10 10
Preference share capital 15 1 1
Fairvalue reserves (8 108 840) 3999350
Retained income 34555372 49761391
Total equity 26446543 53760752
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 13 - 1136244
Totalnon-current liabilities - 1136244
Current liabilities
Trade andother payables 14 3157116 2033291
Debt securities in issue 12 8448244669 8202949946
Other financial liabilities 22.1 16119864 -
Current tax liabilities - 696 701
Totalcurrent liabilities 8467521649 8205679938
Total liabilities 8467521649 8206816182
Total equity and liahilities 8493968192 8260576934
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED

(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Preference Fair value Retained
Share Capital share capital reserves income Total equity
R R R R R
Balanceat 1 January 2019 10 1 190563 84588019 84778593
Profit forthe year - - 40173372 40173372
Other comprehensiveincomefortheyear - - 3808787 - 3808787
Totalcomprehensiveincomefortheyear - - 3808787 40173372 43982159
Dividends declared - - - (75000 000) (75000 000)
Balanceat 31 December2019 10 1 3999350 49761391 53760752
Note 15
Balanceat1 January 2020 10 1 3999350 49761391 53760752
Profit forthe year - - - 54793981 54793981
Other comprehensiveloss for the year - - (12108 190) - (12108190)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (12108 190) 54793981 42685791
Dividends declared - - - (70000 000) (70000 000)
Balanceat31 December 2020 10 1 (8 108 840) 34555372 26446543
Note 15
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Notes R R
Cashflows from operatingactivities
Cashusedin operations 16 (15478999) (16906 298)
Dividends paid 18 (70000 000) (75000 000)
Finance costs paid 20 (508374922) (486110170)
Interest received 21 590542 746 564 643030
Income taxes paid 17 (25603 374) (15146 217)
Net cash used in operating activities (28914 549) (28519 655)
Cash flows from investing activities
Loansand advances extended (1000000000) (2 753 750000)
Loansand advances settled 525000000 -
Proceeds from disposal of Investments 200000000 -
Net cash used in investing activities (275000000) (2 753750000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of debt securities 8390339338 8117250000
Debt securities in issue settled (8117250000) (5363500000)
Net cash generated by financingactivities 273089338 2753750000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (30825211) (28519 655)
Cash andcash equivalents at the beginning of theyear 68 863 264 97382919
Cashandcash equivalents atthe end of the year 19 38038053 68 863264
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF)LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies

for the year ended 31 December 2020

1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ofthe | ASB (IFRS-IC) and therequirements of the Companies Act of
South Africa, asamended.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significantaccounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are
set out below. These policies have beenconsistently a pplied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

During the currentyear, the Company has adopted all of the newandrevised standardsand
interpretations issued by the IASBand the IFRS-ICthat arerelevant to its operations and effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2020. For details of the newand revised accounting
policies referto note 29.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Apart from certain items thatare carriedat fair valued amounts, as explained in the accounting
policies below, the financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal
accounting policies are set outbelow.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to
a goingconcern.

The financial statements are presented in South African Rands (R), the presentation currency ofthe
Company.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest revenueand interestcharges whichare calculated using the effective interest methodare
separately presented in the statement of comprehensiveincome. Effective intereston loansand
advances at amortised cost and debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensiveincome, as
well asthe interestexpense on financial liabilities held at amortised cost, are calculated usingthe
effective interest rate method. This results in the allocation of interest, and directand incremental fees
and costs, overthe expected lives of theassets and liabilities.

The effectiveinterestmethod requires the Company to estimate future cash flows, in some cases
based onits experience of customers' behaviour, consideringall contractual terms of the financial
instrument, aswellas the expected lives of the assetsand liabilities. Due to the large number of
productsandtypes (bothassets and liabilities), there are no individual estimates thatare material to
the results or financial position.

The Companyalso presents as part of net interest income, albeit separate from effective interest

income and effective interest expense, other interest income and other interest charges, which arenot
calculated onthe effective interest method.
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020

2.

24

2.5

251

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the tax payable on the current period's taxable income adjusted by
changesin deferredtaxassetsand liabilities.

CURRENT TAXATION

Income tax payable on taxable profits ("currenttaxation™) is recognised as anexpense in the reporting
period in which the profits arise. Incometax recoverable on taxallowable losses is recognisedasa
current taxassetonly to the extent thatit is regarded as recoverable by offset against taxable profits
arisingin the current or prior reporting period. Currenttax is measured using tax rates and tax laws
that have beenenacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxis providedin full, using the liability method, ontemporary differences arising fromthe
differences betweenthe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carryingamounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax is determined usingtax rates and legislation enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date, which are expected toapply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset whenthere isboth a
legalright to set-off andan intention to settle ona netbasis.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arereassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they canbe
used.

CURRENT ANDDEFERRED TAX

Currentanddeferredtax are recognised in profit or loss, except whenthey relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, thecurrentand
deferred taxare also recognised in other comprehensive incomeor directly in equity respectively.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
INITIALRECOGNITION OF FINANCIALASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financialassets and financial liabilities are initially measured atfair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financialassets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are capitalised to the initial
carryingamountof thefinancial asset/liability, as appropriate oninitial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the terms ofthe
contract, which is the trade date or the settlement date.

On initial recognition, it is presumedthat thetransaction price is the fair value unless there is
observable informationavailable in an activemarketto thecontrary. The bestevidence ofan
instruments fairvalueon initial recognitionis typically the transaction price. However, if fair value
can be evidenced by comparisonwith other observable currentmarket transactions in the same
instrument, or is based on a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from observable
markets thenthe instrumentshould be recognised atthe fair value derived from such observable
market data.
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020

2.

2.5

251

252

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

INITIAL RECOGNITION OF FINANCIALASSETSAND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(continued)

Forvaluations that have made use of significant unobservable inputs, the difference between the
modelvaluationandthe initial transaction price (Day One profit) is recognised in profit or loss either
on a straight-line basis overthe term of the transaction, or over the reporting period untilallmodel
inputs will becomeobservable where appropriate, or releasedin fullwhen previously unobservable
inputs become observable.

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement
categories:

e Amortised cost;

e Fairvalue throughother comprehensive income;or

e Fairvalue throughprofit or loss.

The classification and subsequentmeasurementof financial assets depends on:

e Thebusiness model within which the financial assets are managed; and

e Thecontractual cash flow characteristics of the asset (that is, whether the cash flows represent
solely payments of principal andinterest).

Business model assessment:
The business model reflects how the Company manages the financial assetsin order to generate cash
flows and returns. The Company makes anassessment of the objective ofa business model in which a
financialassetis held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed
and informationis provided to management. The factors considered in determining the business
modelinclude:

i. howthe financialassets' performance is evaluated and reported to management;

ii. howthe riskswithin the portfolio are assessed and managed; and

iii. thefrequency, volume,timingforpast sales, salesexpectations in future periods, and the

reasonsforsuchsales.

The Company reclassifies debt instruments when, and only when, the business model for managing
those assets changes. Such changes are highly unlikely and therefore expectedto be very infrequent.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows aresolely payments of principal and interest (SPPI):
In making the assessmentof whether the contractual cash flows have SPPI characteristics, the
Company considers whether the cash flows are consistent with a basic lendingarrangement. That is,
the contractual cash flows recovered mustrepresent solely the payment of principal and interest.
Principalis the fairvalue of the financial asset on initial recognition. Interest typically includes only
considerationforthe time value of money and credit risk but mayalso include consideration for other
basic lending risks and costs, such as liquidity risk and administrative costs, together with a profit
margin.

Where the contractual terms include exposure torisk or volatility that is inconsistentwith a basic
lendingarrangement, the cash flows would notbe considered tobe SPPI and the assets would be
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss, as described below. Inmaking the
assessment, the Company considers, inter alia, contingent events that would changethe amountand
timing of cash flows, prepayment and extension terms, leverage features, terms that limit the
Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements), and
features that modify consideration of thetime value of money (e.g. tenor mismatch). Contractual cash
flows are assessed againstthe SPPI testin the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020

2.5

252

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Debt Instruments:
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuers

perspective, suchas loans and governmentand corporate bonds. The Company classifies its debt
instruments as follows:

Amortised cost- Financial assets are classified within this measurement category if they are
held within a portfolio whose primary objective is the collection of contractual cash flows,
where the contractual cash flows on the instrument are SPPI, andthatare not designated atfair
value through profit or loss. These financial assets are subsequently measured atamortised
cost where interest is recognised as effective interest within Interest and similarincomeusing
the effectiveinterestrate method. The carryingamount is adjusted by the cumulative expected
credit losses recognised.

Fairvalue through other comprehensive income - This classification applies to financial assets
which meet the SPPI test, and are held within a portfolio whose objectives include both the
collection of contractual cashflows andtheselling of financial assets. These financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value with movements in the fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income, with the exception of interest income, expected credit losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognised within profit or loss. When the financial
asset isderecognised, the cumulative gain orloss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to Net trading income in profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is included as Effective interest within Interest and
similarincome usingtheeffective interestrate method.

Fairvalue throughprofit or loss - Financial assets that do not meet the criteria foramortised
cost orfairvaluethrough other comprehensive income are mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit orloss. Gains and losses onthese instruments are recognised in profit or loss.
The Company may also irrevocably designate financial assets that would otherwise meet the
requirements to be measured atamortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, asat fair valuethrough profit or loss, if doing so would eliminate or significantly
reduce anaccounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. These will be subsequently
measuredatfairvalue through profit or loss with gains andlosses recognisedas Gainsand
losses from bankingandtradingactivities or in profit or loss.
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020

2.

2.5

252

253

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities thatare held atamortised cost aremeasured in accordance with theeffective
interest rate method. That is, the initial fair value (which is normally theamount borrowed) is
adjusted for premiums, discounts, repayments and the amortisation of coupon, fees and expenses to
represent theeffective interest rate ofthe liability.

Financial liabilities classified as held for tradingare subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss, with changes in fair valuebeing recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability may be designated at fair value through profit or loss if (i) measuringthe
instrument at fair valueeliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuringassets or liabilities or recognisingthe gains
and losses on them on different bases; or (ii) if the instrument belongsto a group of financial assetsor
financial liabilities thatare managed on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy. Own credit gains or losses arising from the valuation of financial
liabilities designatedat fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not subsequently recognised in profit or loss.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Company uses a mixed approach to impairment where parameters are modelled atanindividual
financialinstrumentlevel oron a portfolio basis when they are only evidentatthis higher level. A
collective approach will only be carried outwhen financial instruments share similar risk
characteristics, which could include factors suchas instrument type, collateral type, industry,
geographyand credit risk ratings.

The Company recognises expected credit losses based onunbiased forward-looking information.
Expected credit losses are recognised on:

. financial assets atamortised cost

. debtinstruments atfair value through other comprehensive income
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020

2.

2.5
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Impairmentis recognised based ona three-stage approach:

Stage 1: Exposures where there has not been a significantincrease in credit risk since
origination. Fortheseexposures anexpected credit loss is recognised based on the
credit losses expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
of the reporting date. Interest incomeis calculated based on thegross carrying value of
these instruments.

Stage 2: Exposures for which the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
Forthese exposures lifetimeexpected credit losses should be recognised (i.e. credit
losses from default events thatare possible over thelife of the instrument). The
Company will assess whether a significant increase in credit risk hasoccurred based on
(i) qualitative drivers including beingmarked as high risk or reflected on
management’s watch list; and (i) quantitative drivers suchas thechange in the asset’s
cumulative weighted average lifetime probability of default (PD). Any exposurethatis
more than 30 days pastdue willalso be included in this stage. Interest income is
calculated based on thegross carrying value of these instruments.

Stage 3: Exposures which are credit impaired. For these exposures, expected credit losses are
based onlifetimelosses. Assetsareconsidered to be credit impaired when they meet
the regulatory definition of default which includes unlikeliness to pay indicators as well
asany assets that are more than 90 days past due. Interest incomeis calculated based
onthe carryingvalue netof thelossallowance.

Lifetime expected credit losses will no longer be recognised whenthere is evidence that the criteria
areno longer met. This could includea history oftimely payment performance. The low credit risk
exemptionin IFRS 9 has not beenadopted by the Company.

The measurementof expected credit losses mustreflect:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amountthatis determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

- the time value of money (represented by the effectiveinterestrate); and

- reasonable and supportable information thatis available withoutundue costor effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Expected credit losses comprise the unbiased probability weighted credit losses determined by
evaluatinga range of possible outcomes and considering future economic conditions. Expected credit
losses are calculated (forboth 12 months and lifetime losses) as a function of theexposureat default
(EAD); PD and loss given default (LGD). These termsare interpreted as follows per the requirements
of IFRS9:
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020

2.

2.5
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

- EAD is the estimated amountatrisk in the event of a default (before any recoveries) including

behavioural expectation of limit usage by customers in the various stages of credit risk.

- PD is the probability of default ata particular point in time, which may be calculated, based

on the defaults that are possible to occur within the next 12 months; or over theremaining life;
dependingon thestage allocation of the exposure.

- LGD is the difference betweenthe contractual cash flows due and the cash flows expectedto

be received, discounted to the reporting date at the effective interestrate. The expectation of
cash flows takeinto account cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. The estimate reflects the amount and
timing of cash flows expected from the enforcementof collateral less the costs of obtaining
and sellingthe collateral. The collection of any cash flows expected beyond the contractual
maturity of thecontract isalso included.

Lifetime of financial instruments

Forexposures in stage 2 and stage 3, the maximum lifetime over which expected credit losses should
be measured, is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposedto credit risk.
The Company estimates cash flows by consideringall contractual terms of the financial instrument
(forexample, prepayment, extension, calland similar options) through the expected life of that
financialinstrument. In rare cases whenit is not possible to reliably estimate theexpected life of a
financialinstrument, the Company uses the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

Certain credit exposures include both a drawnandanundrawn component and the Company's
contractual ability to demand repaymentand cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the
exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period. In this case, expected credit losses are
measuredover the period that the Company is exposedto credit risk, even if that period extends
beyondthe maximum contractual period. This applies to overdrafts, credit cards and other revolving
products.

These contracts are cancellable at very short noticeand they have nofixed term butcredit may
continue to be extended fora longer period and may only be withdrawn after the credit risk of the
borrower increases, which could betoo late to preventlosses. For these types of products the
expected life isbased on thebehavioural life, i.e. the period overwhich thereis exposure to credit
risk which is not expected tobe mitigated by credit actions(e.g. limit decreases) eventhoughthe
contractpermits immediate limit decrease.

Forwardlookinginformation

Forward-looking information is factored into the measurement of expected losses throughthe use of
multiple expected macro-economic scenarios that are either reflected in estimates of PDand LGD for
material portfolios; oradjusted through expert credit judgementwhere theeffects could not be
statistically modelled.

Write -off
Loansand debtsecurities are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
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IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

for the yearended 31 December 2020
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS
Derecognition of financial assets

Full derecognitiononly occurs whenthe rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been
discharged, cancelled or have expired, or the Company transfers both its contractual right to receive
cash flows from the financial assets (or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows, but
assumes a contractual obligationto paythe cash flows toanother party without material delay or
reinvestment) and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, including credit risk,
prepaymentrisk and interest rate risk. When an asset is transferred, in somecircumstances, the
Company may retain an interest in it (continuing involvement) requiring the Company to rep urchase
it in certain circumstances for other thanits fair value onthatdate.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from thesame party on
substantially differentterms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified (taking
into account both quantitative and qualitative factors), such anexchange ormodificationis treated as
a derecognition oftheoriginalliability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carryingamounts is recognised in profit or loss. Where the terms of an existing liability are
not substantially modified, the liability is not derecognised. Costs incurred onsuchtransactions are
treatedas an adjustment tothe carryingamountof the liability and are amortised over the remaining
term of the modified liability.

On derecognition of a financial instrument, any difference between the carryingamount thereofand
the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrumentis any contractthatevidences a residual interest in the assets of anentity after
deductingall of its liabilities.

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Proceedsare included in equity, net of transaction costs. Dividends and other returns to equity holders
are recognised when declared by theboard.

PREFERENCESHARE CAPITAL

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the
Company's option,andany dividends are discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognised as
distributions within equity. Preference share capital is classified as a liability if it is redeemable ona
specific future date orat the option of the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary.
Dividendsthereonare recognised as aninterestexpense in profit or loss.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company entersinto a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to

interest rate and foreign exchangeraterisks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and
interest rate swaps.
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2.

256

257

2.6

2.7

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Derivativesare initially recognised at fair valueatthe date the derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair valueatthe end of each reporting period. The resulting
gain orloss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective asa hedging instrument, in which event thetiming of the recognitionin profit or loss
dependson the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in financial liability non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives whentheirrisks and characteristics are notclosely related to those of the hostcontracts
and the host contracts are notmeasuredat FVTPL. Embedded derivatives are not separated from
financial assetnon-derivative hostcontractsand the entire contract, includingany embedded
derivatives, isassessedasawhole for classification purposes.

OFFSETTING

Inaccordance with I AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, the Company reports financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis on the statement of financial positiononly if there isa current
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is intentionto settle ona net
basis, orto realise the assetand settle theliability simultaneously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Forthe purposes of thestatementof cash flows, cash comprises cash onhand and demand deposits,
and cash equivalents comprise highly liquid investments that are convertible into cashwith an
insignificant risk of changes in valuewith original maturities of three monthsor less.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Impumelelo CP NoteProgramme 1 (RF) Limited issues various debtsecurity notes which enables
investorsto invest in various debt instruments. The information regarding the results of the reportable
segment is disclosed in the annual financial statements as currently set out. Management views the
entire entity as one segment, thus nofurther disclosures are required in accordance with IFRS 8
Operating segments.
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3.

JUDGEMENTSANDESTIMATES

In the preparation of the annual financial statements, managementis required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect reported income, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Use of available information and theapplication of judgementis
inherent in the formation of estimates. Actualresults in the future could differ from these estimates,
which maybe material to the financial statements within the nextfinancial period.

In most instances, this relates to disclosure rather than tothe measurement of items.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significantimpacton therisks that the company is exposed to, in
particular credit risk, and has forced the company to reassess assumptions, and existing methods of
estimationand judgements, used in the preparation of these financial statements. There remains a risk
that future performance and actual results may differ from the judgements and assumptions used.
Areas of estimates, judgements and assumptions thathave been affected by the Covid-19 pandemic
include determination of fair values and impairments of financial assets. Further detail on the
application of judgements and estimates is included in the notebelow.

The best evidence of fairvalue isa quoted price in an actively traded market. In the event that the
market fora financial instrument is not active, a valuation techniqueis used. The majority of
valuation techniques employ only observable marketdata, and so the reliability of the fairvalue
measurement is high. However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of valuation
techniques that feature oneor more significant market inputs that are unobservable. Valuation
techniques thatrely to a greater extent on unobservable inputs require a higher level of management
judgement to calculatea fair value thanthose based wholly on observable inputs.

Valuation techniques usedto calculate fair values include comparisons with similar financial
instruments for which market observable prices exist, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. Valuationtechniques
incorporate assumptions that other market participants would use in their valuations, including
assumptions about interest rate yield curves, exchange rates, volatilities, and prepayment and default
rates. When valuing instruments by reference to comparable instruments, management takes into
account thematurity, structure andrating of the instrument with which the position held is being
compared.

The main assumptions and estimates which management considers when applyinga modelwith
valuation techniques are:

* The likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows on the instruments. These cash flows are
usually governed by terms of the instrument, although management judgement may be required when
the ability of the counterparty to services the instrument in accordance with the contractual terms in
doubt. Futurecash flows may be sensitive to change in marketrates.
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3.

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

* Selecting an appropriate discount rate for the instrument. Management bases the determination of
thisrate on itsassessmentof whata market participantwould regard as the appropriate spread of the
rates forthe instrumentover the appropriate risk-free rate.

* Judgement to determine whatmodelto use to calculate fair valuein areas where the choice of
valuation model particularly subjective, forexample, when valuing complex derivative products.

When applyinga model with unobservable inputs, estimates are made to reflect uncertainties in fair
valueresultingfroma lack of marketdata inputs, for example, asa result of illiquidity in the market.
Forthese instruments, thefair value measurement is less reliable. Inputs into valuations based on
unobservable data are inherently uncertain becausethere is little or no current market data available
from which to determine thelevelat which an arm’s length transaction would occurunder normal
business condition. However, in most cases there is some market data available on whichto basea
determination of fair value, for example historical data, andthefair values of most financial
instruments will be based onsome market observable inputs evenwhere theunobservable inputs are
significant.

Recognitionof loans andadvances at fair valuethrough profit and loss

Loansand advances recognisedatfair value through profit and loss consist of fixed rate loans with
variable ratefunding, and interestrate swaps on the fixed rate loans to match the interest payments
from the assetto theliability. The assets are thus held at fair valueto net out the accounting m smatch
causedby the derivatives' revaluing.

Recognitionof investment securities atfair value through other comprehensive income

Investment securities, comprising listed bonds, are held with the objective of collecting contractual
cash flows, consisting of interest and principal payments, and for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Theyare thus recognised at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Expected Credit Losses

The Expected Credit Loss estimate was made considering all reasonable and available information,
includingourbest estimate of the impactof multiple forward-looking economic scenarios. The
Expected Credit Loss estimate isan unbiased and probability -weighted amountthat is determined by
evaluatinga range of possible outcomes. Models, processes and assumptions applied in makingthe
Expected Credit Loss estimate, including management adjustments, costs of collection of outstanding
loan exposures, collateral valuation, assessment of significantincreasein credit risk and credit
impaired exposures, write-off points and the definition of default have beenapplied consistently and
are appropriatein the context of IFRS.

ECL estimationmustreflectanunbiased and probability-weighted estimate of future losses
determined by evaluatinga range of possible macroeconomic outcomes. Whilst economic activity
across South Africa hasstartedto recover due tothe easing of lock -down restrictions, economic
concernsremaindue tohigh levels of unemployment and therisk of a possible resurgence of the
virus. Such risks have been incorporated in the scenarios used to calculate the Company's ECL
charge at 31 December 2020.
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3.

6.1

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

A 40% probability weighting was applied to the baseline scenario; with a 30% probability weighting

applied to boththe upsideand downside scenarios.

The key forward looking macro-economic information used by the credit model in the calculation of
expected credit losses include externally sourced data on South Africa's Real Gross Domestic
Product, Consumer Price Index, the Repo Rate and the Producer Price Index.

Default assets that are classified as in default are characterised by the distinct p ossibility thatthe
borrower will default, and should thecollateral pledged be insufficient to cover the asset, the

company will sustainsome loss when default occurs.

2020 2019
R R
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interestincome
Cash and Cashequivalents - effective interest rate 2122035 3449954
Bondsand Loans - effective interest rate 499343826 537495227
Loansrecognised at fair value through profit and loss- effective
interest 74017233 43077328
575483094 584022509
FINANCE COSTS
Interestexpense
Interest ondebt securities in issue 478 669 645 521985015
478669 645 521985015
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR
Profit forthe yearis stated after takingaccountof the following items:
Expected creditlosses
Financialassets
Cashandcash equivalents
Stagel (19784) (290 685)
(19784) (290 685)
Loansand Advances
Stagel 672793 152725
672793 152725
Financial assets recognisedatFair VValue through Other
Comprehensive Income
Stagel 382729 (483549)
382729 (483549)
Totalexpected credit loss on financial assets 1035738 (621509)
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6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

2020 2019
R R
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR (continued)
Auditors remuneration
Audit fees 170796 171292
170796 171292
Directors remuneration
Directors fees 182183 286117
182183 286117
Other expenses
Managementfees 6787740 3906332
Other professional services 50597 50738
Administration fees and expenses 376127 468975
Bank charges 476 (103553)
Tax penaltyand related interest (796 541) 796 541
6418399 5119033

Atax penaltyand the related interest levied onthe entity in the prior yearwaswaived by SARS
duringthe current year aftera successful appeal made by the Company.

TAXATION

INCOME TAX RECOGNISED INPROFIT ORLOSS

Currenttax
Normaltax - current year 19748595 15453357
19748595 15453357
Deferred tax
Deferred tax recognised in the current year 1250410 479 388
1250410 479388
Totalincometax recognised in the current year 20999005 15932745
Reconciliation between operating profitand tax expense
Profit before tax for the year 75792986 56106117
Income taxexpense calculatedat28% (2019:28%) (21222 036) (15709714)
Effect ofincome that is exempt from taxation 223032 -
Effect of expenses thatare not deductible in determining taxable
profit - (223031)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (20999 004) (15932 745)
% %
Tax rate reconciliation
Statutory taxrate 28.00% 28.00%
Effective income taxrate 28.00% 28.00%
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Reductions
Balances at due to
the beginning disposals/
of the Current derecognition Originated/
reporting period of financial purchased
period provision assets assets Total
R R R R R
8. CREDIT RISK RECONCILIATION-EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE
2020
Cashand cashequivalents
Stage 1l 23165 (19784) - - 3381
Totalexpected credit losses 23165 (19784) - - 3381
Loansand Advances
Stagel 1620697 421637 (469 805) 720960 2293489
Totalexpected credit losses 1620697 421637 (469 805) 720960 2293489
Financial Assets held at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Stage 1l 679626 412760 (30031) - 1062 355
Totalexpected credit losses 679626 412760 (30031) - 1062 355
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Reductions
Balances at due to
the beginning disposals/
of the Current derecognition Originated/
reporting period of financial purchased
period provision assets assets Total
R R R R R
8. CREDIT RISKRECONCILIATION -EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE
(continued)
2019
Cashand cashequivalents
Stage 1l 313850 (290 685) - - 23165
Totalexpected credit losses 313850 (290 685) - - 23165
Loansand Advances
Stage 1l 1467972 (257528) (1023377) 1433630 1620697
Totalexpected credit losses 1467972 (257528) (1023377) 1433630 1620697
Financial Assets held at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Stage 1 1163175 (483549) - - 679626
Totalexpected credit losses 1163175 (483549) - - 679626
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8.

10.

CREDIT RISKRECONCILIATION-EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSALLOWANCE
(continued)

The 2019 figures have beenrestated with granularand more disaggregated information in the current
yearto improvethe information provided to the Financial Statementusers. This disaggregation of
informationwasalso doneon the Statement of Comprehensive Incomewhenreflecting current year
expected credit losses forassetsat FVOCI as well asthe corresponding deferred tax and current fair
value movements of assets at FOCI.

2020 2019
R R

INVESTMENTS
Listed investments

Financial Assets held at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

2100000000 2100000000
Disposalsduringthe period (200 000 000) -
Fairvalue adjustments atthe end of the period (10690052) 4801179
Accrued interestat the end of the period 12902 696 26184743

Notionalat beginning of period

Balanceatend ofyear 1902212644 2130985922

During the year the company sold investments 0f R200,000,000; as part ofthe sale fairvalue losses
of R347,256 were reclassified from OCI to profit orloss anda gain 0fR347,256 was recognisedon
thesale. The gainsand losses are part of Fair valueadjustments in profit or loss.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Investments in loans recognised atamortised cost 5592250000 5117250000
Accrued intereston loans recognised at amortised cost 27030280 28324994
Investments in loans recognised at fair value through profit and 900000000 900000 000
loss

Accrued intereston loans recognised at fair value through profit 6347178 6615863
and loss
Fairvalue adjustments on loans recognised at fair value through 22105703 5000069

profitandloss

6547733161 6057190926
Expected credit losses (2 293 489) (1620697)
Total carryingamount ofloansandadvances 6545439672 6055570229
Maturity of loans and advances
Current 1849736790 358320160
Non-current 4695702882 5697250069
6545439672 6055570229
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10.

11.

12.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

Loansand advances consist of loans with face valuesand the related interest at fixed and floating
rates; floating rates are referencedto either Prime or Jibar.

The average interestrate fortheunlisted bonds and loans during the currentreporting period was
6.88% (2019:8.78%).

All the company's rights and interests to these balances are pledgedto iMpumelelo Security SPV 1
(RF) Proprietary Ltd (referto note 12).

Loansand advances recognised atfair value through profit and loss consist of fixed rate loans with
variable ratefunding, and interestrate swaps on the fixed rate loans to match the interest payments
from the assetto theliability. The assetsare thus heldat fair valueto net out the accounting mismatch
causedby the derivatives' revaluingand providea fair presentation of the underlying asset.

2020 2019
R R

OTHERRECEIVABLES
Refunded prioryeartax penaltyand related interest 796 542 -
796 542 -
Current 796542 -
796542 -

Accrued interestis presented with the Investments balanceand the Loans And Advances balance as
disclosed in notes9 and 10, respectively.

Amounts due to related parties disclosed in note 26.

The tax penalty refunds relateto prior year penalties andtherelated interestwhich have been waived
in the current yearand credited to the Company's tax accountwith the South African Revenue
Service.

DEBT SECURITIESIN ISSUE

Currentliabilities

Debt securities in issue 8392250000 8117250000
Accrued intereston debt securities 55994669 85699946

8448244669 8202949946
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12.

13.

DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE (continued)

Notes issued consist of unlisted notes bearing floating interest rates referencingto either Prime or
JIBAR.

The average interestrate fortheunlisted notes for the currentyear under reviewwas 5.50% (2019:
7.68%).

In terms of the Security SPV guarantee, iMpumelelo Security SPV 1 (RF) Ltd holds and can realise
security for the benefits of thenoteholders in the eventof a default. In brief, thesecurity consists of
the Company/'srights, title and interests in and to the bank accounts and permitted investments, the
collateraland all other benefits and rights flowing from the aforementioned rights and interests.s. The
default event that drives the guarantee isiMpumelelo CP Note Programme 1 (RF) Limited defaulting
on the notesand not theunderlying borrowers defaulting on their loans.

During the year, the following cash flow items occurred:

The Company settled capital on debt securities of R8,117,250,000 (2019: R5,363,500,000).

Interest paid on the statementof cash flows is R508,374,922 (2019: R486,110,170).

The Company received proceeds of R8,390,339,338 (2019: R8,117,250,000) from theissue of debt
securities.

Other cash adjustments of R1,910,662
During the year, the following non-cash flow items occurred:

Interest expense forthe year relating to debt securities R478,669,645 (2019: R521,985,015).

2020 2019
R R

DEFERRED TAX
Deferredtax balances
The analysis of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities is as follows:
Deferred tax assets 2322087 -
Deferred tax liabilities - 1136244
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) at the end of the year 2322087 (1136244)
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13. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax balances (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Recognisedin

other
Balanceatl Recognisedin comprehensive Balanceat31
January  profitorloss income December
R R R R
2020
Financial Assets at fair
value through OCl (1481455) - 4708741 3227286
Derivatives - (1424 409) - (1424 409)
Expected Credit Losses 345211 173999 - 519210
(1136244) (1250410) 4708741 2322087
2019
Financial Assets at fair
value through OCI - - (1481 455) (1481455)
Expected Credit Losses 824599 (479 388) - 345211
- 824599 (479 388) (1481 455) (1136244)
2020 2019
R R
14. TRADE AND OTHERPAYABLES
Trade payables 425262 292131
Amountsdue to related parties (note 26) 2731854 1741160
3157116 2033291

Accrued interestis presented with the Debt securities in issue balance as disclosed in note 12,
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2020 2019
R R
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorisedshare capital
100 (2019: 100) ordinary shares ofno par value pershare. 100 100
Authorised preference share capital
50 (2019:50) cumulative redeemable preferenceshare capital of
no parvalue pershare. 50 50
Issued share capital
10(2019:10) ordinary shares of nopar valuepershare. 10 10
10 10
Issued preferencesharecapital
1(2019: 1) cumulative redeemable preference share capital of
no parvalue pershare. 1 1
1 1

Unissued shares

The unissuedshares are under the control of the directorsasatthe reporting date, in termsof a

generalauthority to allotand issue them onsuchtermsand conditionsandat suchtimes asthey deem

fit. This authority expires atthe forthcomingannual general meeting of the Company.

Sharesissued duringthe current reporting period:

There were no shares issued during the current reporting period.

Sharesissued duringthe prior reporting period:
There were no shares issued during the prior reporting period.

All shares issued by the Company were paid in full.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

2020 2019
R R
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS
Profit before tax forthe year 75792986 56106117
Finance costs 478669 645 521985015
Interestincome (575483094) (584022509)
Net gain arisingon financial assets designatedas at fairvalue
through profit or loss (16903402) (5000069)
Expected credit losses (see note 6) 1035738 (621509)
Cash usedin operations before working capital changes (36888127) (11552 955)
Changesinworking capital
Increase in trade and other receivables (796 542) -
Increase in trade and other payables 1123825 195332
(decrease)/Increase in derivative liabilities 21081845 (5548675)
Total changes in working capital 21409128 (5 353343)
Cash usedin operations (15478999) (16 906 298)
TAXATIONPAID
Tax payable at the beginning of the year (696 701) (389561)
Current tax expense (19748595) (15453 357)
Tax (receivable)/payable at theend of theyear (5158078) 696701
(25603374) (15146 217)
DIVIDENDS PAID
Dividends declaredand paid during the currentyear 70000000 75000000
70000000 75000000

The preferencedividend declared and paid during the year amounts to R70,000,000 per share in issue

(1 shareinissue).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Callaccount 29729066 68863263
Transactionaccount 8308986 -
Gross Cash and cash equivalents 38038052 68863263
Expected credit losses (3 380) (23164)
Carryingamount 38034672 68840099
FINANCE COSTSPAID
Finance costs (478669645) (521985015)
Accrued interestnotpaid atthe beginning of the year (85699 946) (49825101)
Accrued interestnotpaid atthe end ofthe year 55994669 85699946
(508374922) (486110170)
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2020 2019
R R
21. INTEREST RECEIVED
Interest Income 575483 0% 584995121
Accrued interestnotreceived at thebeginning of the year 61344303 40992212
Accrued interestnotreceivedat theend of the year (46284 651) (61344 303)
590542 746 564 643030
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22.

221

Fair value Fair value Fairvalue
through through  throughOCI- Amortisedcost Amortised cost
profit/loss - profit/loss - debt - debt financial Total assets
mandatory designated instruments instruments liabilities andliabilities
R R R R R R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIESOF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Assets as per Statement of Financial Position - 2020
Loansand advances - 928452881 - 5616986791 - 6545439672
Cashandcash equivalents - - - 38034672 - 38034672
Investment securities - - 1902212644 - - 1902212644
Trade andotherreceivables - - - 796542 - 796542
Related party receivables - - - 4497 - 4497
Total - 928452881 1902212644 5655822502 - 8486488027
Liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position - 2020
Otherfinancial liabilities (16119 864) - - - - (16119 864)
Debt securities in issue - - - - (8448244669) (8448244669)
Trade andother payables - - - - (3157116) (3157 116)
Total (16119 864) - - - (8451401785) (8467521649)
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22.

221

Fair value Fair value Fairvalue
through through  throughOCI- Amortisedcost Amortised cost
profit/loss - profit/loss - debt - debt financial Total assets
mandatory designated instruments instruments liabilities andliabilities
R R R R R R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Assets as per Statement of Financial Position -2019
Loansand advances - 911615932 - 5143957125 - 6055573057
Cash andcash equivalents - - - 68840099 - 68840099
Investment securities - - 2130985922 - - 2130985922
OtherFinancial Assets 4961981 - - - - 4961981
Related party receivables - - - 218703 - 218703
Total 4961981 911615932 2130985922 5213015927 - 8260579762
Liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position - 2019
Debt securities in issue - - - - (8202949946) (8202949946)
Trade andother payables - - - - (2 033557) (2 033557)
Total - - - - (8204983503) (8204983503)

44



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

22.

22.2

23.

23.1

23.2

23.3

2020 2019
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
R R R R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Interest rateswaps - 16119864 4961981 -
- 16119864 4961981 -
Current portion - 16119864 4961981 -
- 16119864 4961981 -

RISK MANAGEMENT
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
asa goingconcernin orderto provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the costof capital. There are no externally imposed
capital requirements onthe Company.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The Company’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them
professionally. The core functions ofthe Company’s risk managementare to identify all key risks for
the Company, measure these risks, manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations. The
Company regularly reviews its risk management policies and systemsto reflect changes in markets,
products and best marketpractice.

The Company’saimis to achieve an appropria te balance between risk and return and minimise
potential adverse effects onthe Company’s financial performance. The Company defines risk as the
possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be caused by internal or external factors.

Therisks arising from financial instruments to which the Company is exposedare credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk.

MARKET RISK

Marketrisk is the risk of reduction in the Company's earnings or ca pital dueto:

» Traded market risk: the risk of the Company being impacted by changes in the level or volatility of
market ratesor prices. Thisincludes changes in interest rates, inflation rates, credit spreads, property
prices, equity and bond prices andforeign exchange levels.

* Non-traded marketrisk: the risk of the Company beingexposed to interestraterisk arising from
loans, depositsand similarinstruments held for longer term strategic purposes rather than for the
purpose of profiting from changes in interest rates.

The Company's marketrisk managementobjectives include the protection and enhancementof the

statement of financial position and statement of comprehensiveincomeand facilitating business
growth within a controlled and transparent risk management framework.
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23.

23.3

23.4

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

MARKET RISK (continued)

Given that the assets are match funded, the company has limited exposure to market risk.
INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest raterisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumentwill
fluctuate because of changes in marketinterest rates.

The notes and bonds expose thecompany to interestrate risk. This exposure and the effective interest
rates on financial instruments on financial position dateare linked to the general marketinterestrates
and fluctuate accordingly.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based onthe exposure to interest rates for the
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For both floating rate assetsand
liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amountof the asset and liability outstandingatthe
end of the reporting period was outstanding for thewhole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest raterisk internally to key managementpersonneland represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interestrates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Increasein Decreasein Increasein Decrease in
interestrate  interestrates interest rate interest rates
2020 2020 2019 2019
R R R R
Changesininterest
Increase/(decrease) in
interest received 74922500 (74922500) 58902258 (58902 258)
Increase/(decrease) in
interest paid (81422500) 81422500 (52198502) 52198502
Increase/(decrease) in
profit before taxation (6 500000) 6500000 6703756 (6 703756)

Some of the assets and liabilities are atfixed interest rates, exposing the Company to interest rate
risk. Interest rate swaps are entered into to mitigate this risk.
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23.

23.5

23.5.1

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

CREDIT RISK

Creditrisk refersto the risk that a counterparty willdefault on its contractual obligations resulting in

financial loss to the Company.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficientcollateral, where appropriate, asa means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from

defaults.

The Company only transactswith entities that are rated the equivalent of investment gradeand above.
Thisinformationis supplied by independentratingagencies whereavailable and, if not available, the
Company uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rateits

major customers.

The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and
the aggregate value of transactions concluded is sprea d amongst approved counterparties. Credit
exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the risk management

committee annually.

Gross 12 months
Maximum expected
Exposure creditlosses-
stage 1
R R

MAXIMUM CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE
2020
Cashandcash equivalents 38038052 38038052
Loansand advances 5619280280 5619280280
Otherreceivables 796542 796542
Financial assets designated at Fair value 928452881 928452881
Related party receivables 4497 4497
Financial assets measuredat Fair Valuethrough Other 1902212644 1902212644
Comprehensive Income
Total gross maximum exposure 8488784896 8488784896
Expected credit losses (2296 869) (2296 869)
Total financialassets per the statement of financial position 8486488027 8486488027
2019
Cash andcash equivalents 68 863264 68863264
Loansand advances 5145574994 5145574994
Financial assets designated at Fair value 911615932 911615932
Related party receivables 218703 218703
Financial assets measuredat Fair Valuethrough Other 2130985922 2130985922
Comprehensive Income
Total gross maximum exposure 8257258815 8257258815
Expected credit losses (1641033) (1641033)
Total financial assets per the statement of financial position 8255617782 8255617782

The expected credit loss on the Other receivables and Related party balances has been judged by

management as beingimmaterial.

47



IMPUMELELO CPNOTE PROGRAMME 1 (RF) LIMITED
(Registration number: 2013/211998/06)

Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 December 2020

23.

23.6

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk results from boththedifferences between the magnitude of assets and liabilitiesand the
disproportionin their maturities. Liquidity risk is the risk that operations cannotbe fundedand
financial commitments cannotbe mettimeously and costeffectively. Liquidity risk management
dealswith the overall time profile of the current statement of financial positionas well the expected
future structure. The Company's risk to liquidity isa result of insufficientfunds beingavailable in
orderto cover future commitments. The company manages liquidity risk throughanongoing re view
of future commitments and credit facilities. The Series 1 Notesare fully supported by an irrevocable
and unconditional guarantee issuedby Absa Bank Limited (the “Absa Guarantee™) to boththe Series

1 Noteholders and the Issuer. The Absa Guarantee is specific to Series 1 and covers the Series 1
Noteholders (including M TN Noteholders) against any payment obligations by the Issuer to the
Noteholders arising from an Event of Default in terms of the Transaction Documents. The Absa
Guaranteealso provides an irrevocable and unconditional guarantee to the Issuerforanyandall
paymentobligations incurred by the Issuer under the Transaction Documents. The Absa Guarantee
also coversthe Issueragainst any Liquidity Shortfalls arising froma payment mismatch at the

maturity date of the Notes.

Liquidity and interestrisk tables

The followingare the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest

payments.
Lessthanl
year Total
R R
Liabilities
2020
Trade andother payables 3157116 3157116
Debt securities in issue 8448244669 8448244669
Otherfinancial liabilities 16119864 16119864
8467521649 8467521649
2019
Trade andother payables 2033557 2033557
Debt securities in issue 8202949946 8202949946
8204983503 8204983503
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23.6

24,

Lessthanl
year 1-5years Total
R R R
RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)
Assets
2020
Cashandcash equivalents 38034672 - 38034672
Otherreceivables 796 542 - 796 542
Loansand advances 1849736790 4695702882 6545439672
Investments - 1902212644 1902212644
Related party receivables 4497 - 4497
1888572501 6597915526 8486488027
2019
Cash and cash equivalents 68840099 - 68 840099
Loansand advances 358320160 5697250069 6055570229
Investments - 2130985922 2130985922
Otherfinancial assets 4961981 - 4961981
Related party receivables 218703 - 218703
432340943 7828235991 8260576934

The mechanism ofanassetbacked commercial paper (ABCP) conduit is to fundlong-dated assets
with short-term notes. The notes roll on maturity to match the final maturity of theassets. The
amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial assets
and liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interestrates dif fer to those estimates of
interest rates determinedatthe end of the reporting period.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSNOT HELD AT FAIRVALUE

Some of the below financial assets and financial liabilities have carryingamounts that approximate
theirfairvalues. The disclosed fair value ofthese financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximatetheir carrying value because some of these financial assets and financial
liabilities havefloating interest rates.

2020 2019
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fairvalue
amount amount

R R R R
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 38034672 38034672 68840099 68 840099
Loansand advances 5616986791 5616986791 5143954297 5143957125
Otherreceivables 796542 796542 - -
Related Party receivables 4497 4497 218714 218714
Total 5655822502 5655822502 5213013110 5213015938
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 3157116 3157116 2033292 2033292
Notes issued 8448244669 8448244669 8202949946 8202949946
Total 8451401785 8451401785 8204983238 8204983238
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24.1.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSNOT HELD AT FAIR VALUE (continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The followingtable provides an analysis of the Company's financial assets and financial lia bilities
that are notmeasuredat fair value subsequent to initial recognition, groupedinto Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which theinstrument's fair value is observable. The classification of instruments is
based onthe lowest level input thatis significant to the fair value measurementin its entirety.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined below.

Level1

Items valued with referenceto unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets wherethe quoted price is readily available and the price representsactualand regularly
occurringmarket transactionsonanarm's length basis.

An active marketis one in which transactions occur with sufficient volumeand frequency toprovide
pricing information onanongoing basis.

Level 2
Items valued using inputs other than quoted prices as described abovefor Level 1 but which are
observable fortheasset or liability, either directly orindirectly, suchas:

e quotedprice forsimilarassets or liabilities in an active market;

e quotedprice foridentical orsimilarassets or liabilities in inactive markets;

¢ valuation model using observable inputs; and

e valuation model using inputs derived from/corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3

Items valued usingsignificantinputs that arenotonly based on observable marketdata. These include
inputs based on an entity's own assumptions and assumptions applied by other market participants in
pricing similarassets.
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Level 2

R

Total
R

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSNOT HELD AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

2020

Financial Assets

Trade and other receivables

Trade andother receivables 796542 796 542
796 542 796 542
Loansand advances
Loansand advances 5616986791 5616986791
5616986791 5616986791
Related Party receivables
Related Party receivables 4497 4497
4497 4497
Cashand cashequivalents
Cash andcash equivalents 38034672 38034672
38034672 38034672
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trade andother payables 3157116 3157116
3157116 3157116
Debt securitiesinissue
Debt securities in issue 8448244669 8448244669
8448244669 8448244669
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24.1.

Level 2

R

Total
R

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSNOT HELD AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

2019

Financial Assets
Loansand advances
Loansand advances

5143957125

5143957125

5143957125 5143957125
Related Party receivables
Related Party receivables 218714 218714
218714 218714
Cashandcash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 68 840099 68 840099
68840099 68840099
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trade andother payables 2033292 2033292
2033292 2033292
Debt securitiesinissue
Debt securities in issue 8202949946 8202949946
8202949946 8202949946
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24.

24.2.

25.

25.1

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSNOT HELD AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

VALUATIONTECHNIQUES FORTHE LEVEL 2 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL ASSETSAND FINANCIAL LIABILITIESNOT HELD AT FAIRVALUE

The table belowsets out information about the valuation techniques usedatthe end of the reporting
period in measuring financial instruments, which are not held atfair value, butwhose fair value is
categorisedas Level 2. Adescription of the nature of the techniques usedto calculate valuations
based onobservable inputs and valuations is set out in the table below:

Category of asset Types of financial Valuationtechniques Significant
instruments applied observable inputs

Trade and other Debtors Discountedcashflow  Interestratecurves

receivables

Loansandadvances BondsandLoans Discountedcashflow Interestratecurves

Cashandcash Bank deposits Discountedcashflow Interestratecurves

equivalents

Categoryofliability = Typesof financial Valuationtechniques Significant
instruments applied observable inputs

Trade and other Creditors Discountedcashflow  Interestratecurves

payables

Debt securitiesin Notes issued Discountedcashflow  Interestratecurves

issue

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF ASSETSAND LIABILITIESHELD AT FAIRVALUE
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The followingtable provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition atfairvalue, groupedinto Levels 1 to 3 based onthe degree to which the fair value
is observable.

Level 1 fairvalue measurementsare those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fairvalue measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable forthe asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fairvalue measurements are those derived from valuation techniques thatincludesignificant
inputs forthe assetor liability that are notbased on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Level 2
R

Total
R

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF ASSETSAND LIABILITIESHELD AT FAIRVALUE

(continued)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
2020

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial Assets
FairValue ThroughProfitand Loss

Financial assets held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 928452881 928452881
928452881 928452881
Fairvalue through OCI
Investments 1902212644 1902212644
1902212644 1902212644
Financial Liabilities
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships
Otherfinancial liabilities 16119864 16119864
16119864 16119864
2019
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial Assets
FairValue ThroughProfitand Loss
Financialassets held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 911615932 911615932
911615932 911615932

Fairvalue through OCI

Investments 2130985922

2130985922

2130985922

2130985922

Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships

Other financial assets 4961981

4961981

4961981

4961981

Financial Liabilities
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25.

25.2

26.

Level 2 Total
R R

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF ASSETSAND LIABILITIESHELD AT FAIRVALUE
(continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT PROCESSES

VALUATIONTECHNIQUES FORTHE LEVEL 2 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT OF
ASSETSAND LIABILITIESHELDAT FAIRVALUE

The table below sets out information about the valuation techniques applied atthe end ofthe
reporting period in measuringassetsand liabilities whose fair value is categorisedas Level 2 in the
fairvalue hierarchy. Adescriptionofthe nature of the techniques used to calculate valuations based
on observable inputs and valuations is set out in the table below:

Cateqgoryof asset/liability Valuationtechnigue applied  Significantobservable inputs

Investments Discounted cash flow Interest rate curves/Credit
spread

Derivative Liabilities Discounted cash flow Interest ratecurves

Loansand advances Discounted cash flow Interest rate curves/Credit
spread

RELATEDPARTIES
iMpumelelo Owner Trust owns 100% of the ordinary shares in the Company.
Absa Bank Limitedinvested in 100% of the Preferenceshare capital.

Absa BankLimitedholds 47% (2019: 36%) of the notes issued on behalf of the Company under the
Dealer Arrangement Agreement.

Absa Bank Limited hasissueda guarantee in respect to 100% of these notes and hence controls the
Company in accordance with IFRS 10. The Company is consolidated into Absa Bank Limited. Refer
to note 23.5. Absa Corporate and Investment Bank, a divisionof Absa Bank Limited, administers the
Company andreceives a management fee as compensation.

Adminand
management Interest
fees paid received Bankcharges
R R R
2020
Other
Absa Bank Limited (6 787 740) 2122035 476
(6 787 740) 2122035 476
2019
Other
Absa Bank Limited (3906 332) 3449954 (103553)
(3906 332) 3449954 (103553)
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26.

27.

28.

29.

Current Current
amounts amounts Cashandcash Preference
receivable payable equivalents  share capital
R R R R

RELATEDPARTIES (continued)

2020
Other related parties
Absa Bank Limited 4497  (3932250000) 38034672 1)
4497  (3932250000) 38034672 1)
2019
Other related parties
Absa Bank Limited 218703 (2 890250000) 68840099 1)
218703 (2 890250000) 68840099 1)

Admin and management fee payable to Absa Bank Limitedatthe end of the reporting period
R2,731,854(2019:R1,741,426).

Interest oncash balances receivable from Absa Bank Limited R218,703 (2019: R4,497)

DIRECTORSEMOLUMENTS

Absa Group Limited representative directors are not remunerated for their services by the Company
or any company in the Group as defined by the Companies Act. The Company’s non-executive
directors’ feesof R182,183(2019: R286,117) are paid to TMF Corporate Services (South Africa)
Proprietary Limited for non-executive director services provided tothe Company.

EVENTSAFTERTHE REPORTING DATE

The financial statements were approved by thedirectors on thedate in the statement of directors'
responsibility.

The directors are not aware of any significantevents subsequentto thereporting datethatwould
materially impact the outcome of these financial statements as currently presented.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Adoption of newand revised Standards

During the currentyear, the Company has adopted all the newandrevised standards and
interpretations issued by the IASBandthe IFRS-ICthat arerelevant to its operations and effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2020. The adoption of thesenewand revised
standardsand interpretations has not resulted in material changes to the Company's accounting
policies.

The Company adopted the following standards, interpretations and amended standards during the
year:

The The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting sets out a comprehensive set of

Conceptual  concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparersin

Framework developing consistent accounting policies, andassistance to others in their efforts to
understandand interpret the standards.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards issued not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations

were in issue but not yet effective:

Annual
periods
beginning on
Standard or after
IAS1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current - Amendments 1January 2023

which aim to help companies determine whether, in the statement of
financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement
date shouldbe classified as current (due or potentially dueto be settled
within one year) or non-current. The amendments include clarifying the
classification requirements for debt a company might settle by
convertingit into equity.

Apart fromtheinstances detailed above the Company is in the process of assessing the potential
impactthat theadoption of these standards and interpretations may have onits future financial

performanceordisclosures in the annual financial statements.
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Attestationby AFSreviewer: True/False

I hereby attest that thebelow values and any assumptions applied have been reviewed and agrees to the final signed off
Annual financial statements and theabove values can be relied on as accurate and finaland canbe usedandtagged as
such inthe iXBRL version which is filed with the CIPC.

JanLuus, CA(SA) | TRUE | Tab 1000 cellF196
Mandatory Company information FF Inputs Pack reference
Declaration of audit/review opinion present TRUE

Declaration of Directors responsibility report present TRUE

Declaration of signature/s by authorised directors TRUE

Disclosure of Socialand Ethics committee
Full registered name of company

Registrationnumber of company

Date of end of reporting period

Disclosure of directors' responsibility [textblock]
Date of approval of annual financial statements
(directorsign off date)

Audit partner name

Disclosure of directors'report [textblock]

Date of publication of financial statements

Name of individual responsible for preparation or
supervising preparation of financial statements
Name of designated person responsible for compliance
Professional designation of individual responsible for
preparationorsupervising preparation of financial
statements

Customer code
Description of nature of entity's operations and
principalactivities

Principalplace ofbusiness of company
Businessaddress, country

Business address, city

Business address, postal code
Business address, street name

Postaladdress same as business address
Period covered by financial statements
Description of presentation currency
Nature of Financial statements

Levelof Roundingapplied

Levelof Assurance

Annual financial statements audited
Audit report sign off datesign off

**All above values are required in the annual return, where yousee @@ it means it has notbeen populated, please go

back to your packand populate.

Values extracted from FE

See Absa Group Limited annual
financial statements

iMpumelelo CP Note Programme
1 (RF) Limited

2013/211998/06

31 December2020

TRUE

29 March2021

Janneman Labuschagne
TRUE

29 March2021

Gary Nyamugama, CA(SA)

Jan Luus, CA(SA)

Head of Asset Classes Product
Control, Corporate and
Investment Banking, Absa Bank
Limited

BAGLO1

A special purpose company that
issues commercial paperto
finance theacquisition of assets.
The ongoingaccounting, risk
management and administration
are performed by Absa Bank
Limited.

Johannesburg

South Africa

Johannesburg

2000

7th Floor Absa Towers West, 15
Troye Street

False

January to December

South African Rands

Company

R

AUDITED
TRUE
29 March2021

2020 2019

Tab 1000 line 132
Tab 1000 Line 130
Tab 1000 Line 131
Tab 1000 Line 129

Tab 1000 Line 29
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Average number of employees - - tab 6060 line 97/tab6061
line 29(BNK)

Increase (decrease) in equity (27314 209)

Cash and cash equivalents 38038052 68863264

Increase (decrease) in cashand cash equivalents (30825211) (28519 655)

Cash flows from (used in) financingactivities 273089338 2753750000

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities (275000000) (2 753 750000)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities (28914 549) (28519 655)

Comprehensive income 42685791 43982159

Othercomprehensiveincome (12108190) 3808787

Tax expense (income), continuing operations (20999 005) (15932 745)

Profit (loss) 54793981 40173372

Profit (loss) before tax 75792986 56106117

Assets 7483339001 8260576934

Equity 26446543 53760752

Liabilities 8467521649 8206816182

Calculations or values manually calculated and inputted into FF template

Turnover: (no rounding is applied to this value) 562269 747 - Tab1000cellF202

Points allocated toPI (roundup) | 563 |

Guidance onrevenue

Companiesact sec 164 - definesturnoveras gross revenue, allowed to deduct deductions as allowed by IFRS or
discounts ordirect taxes

Revenue istreated within IFRS 15, and should include gross fee income (therefore excluding feeexpenses)

Whilst interest incomeis not within the scope of IFRS 15 (that is, its included in IFRS 9), AS 1 does refer to effective
interest asa component of revenue (revenue should exclude interestexpense)

No costs of income should be included in revenue

For Insurancethe followingshould be Revenue; Gross written premium, Gross change in unearned premium, Admin fee
income, Insurance benefits and claims recovered (not thereinsurance one), Interestincome and investmentincome.
External Liabilities 4535271649 Tab 1000 cellF199
Pointsallocated to Pl (roundup) | 4536 |

Liabilities less related party liabilities, deferred tax and

internal provisions

Public Interest (P1) score: (as per pack) 5099 Tab 1000 cell F196
Final Pl recalculated with roundup | 5099 | (Notethisisthe Pl to be used for XBRL, the
Guidance onPl Calculation: Pl calc regulations were clarifiesand 1 point

permillion or portion there of needsto be
applied) Changed on4 May2020.
a number of points equal to the average number of employees of the company during the financial year;
one point forevery R1million (or portionthereof) in third party liability of the company, at the financial yearend;
one point forevery R1million (or portionthereof) in turnover during the financial year; and
one point forevery individual who, atthe end of the financial year, is known by the company to have a beneficial interest
in any of the company's issued securities;
'= Simplified formula: (Revenue + Total Liabilities - Related party liabilities -Deferred Tax)/1000000 + Ave Employees
+ Beneficial interest

Maximum number of individuals with beneficial - Tab 1000 lines 100-109
interestinsecurities of company, or membersin
case of non profitcompany
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